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On Wednesday, May 27, the Metropolitan YMCA of the Oranges will celebrate 
National Senior Health & Fitness Day® — the Y’s national initiative to improve 
the health and well-being of Seniors — virtually.
National Senior Health & Fitness Day® is a nationwide health and fitness event for older 
adults, always held the last Wednesday in May during Older Americans Month. 2020 
will mark the 27th anniversary of the program, and more than 120,000 older adults will 
participate at local events at more than 1,200 locations across the country on the same day.
The event’s goals are to promote the importance of regular physical activity, and to 
showcase what local organizations are doing to improve the health and fitness of 
older adults in their communities. Activities can be done at any time, and this guide is 
downloadable so you can refer back to it.
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Schedule of Events

11:00 am ZOOM Call - Mindfulness and Meditation by Homewatch CareGivers - See pg 7 to register.

12:00 pm ▶ Lunch N” Learn (Click to view) - What is Holocaust Education? - an interview by Dustin 
Hausner with Abigail Miller, Education Director, Holocaust Museum & Center for Tolerance and Education.

  1:00 pm ▶ Chair Yoga (Click to view)

https://youtu.be/_jMeTTUfhXU
https://youtu.be/plRbeGPaDgU
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Active Adult Bingo
National Senior Health & Fitness Day® Edition
How to play 
Look at the Bingo card below, pick out an activity, when you complete it cross it off 
and you’re on your way to getting BINGO! The Ultimate goal is to do all the activities.

B I N G O
Wall Push 

Ups
Wrist 
Curls

Chair 
Stand

Side Leg 
Raise

Stand on 
One Foot

March in 
place

2-5 minutes

Overhead 
Arm Raise

Full Body 
Stretch Chair Dip Heel to 

Heel Walk

Bicep/
Arm Curls

Alternating 
Leg 

Straightening

Do your 
Favorite 
Exercise

Toe Stand 
Calf Raise

Seated 
Crunch

Knee bend/ 
Squats

Side Arm 
Raise

Seated 
Row

Elbow 
Extension/

Tricep 
Extension

Walk 
around your 

house or 
yard

Seated 
Crunch

Back Leg 
Raise

Front Arm 
Raise Knee Curl Full Body 

Stretch
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▶ Breathing Techniques (click to view)
“Cool the Pizza” Breathing. Square Breathing. Feather Breathing. Flower Breathing. 
Shapes Breathing.

Mindfulness-Stress and Anxiety Relief
Mindfulness, or the ability to be present and composed when confronting 
the challenges of our busy lives, can benefit anyone of any age. Practicing 
mindfulness can help relieve stress and anxiety in children and can boost 
learning skills in early childhood, such as attentiveness, memory, ability to 
focus, problem solving and behavior.
Here are some resources for children and families to practice mindfulness.

National Senior Health & Fitness Day®

https://youtu.be/LtrXdC_pXs8
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▶ 54321 Grounding (click to view)

The 54321 grounding technique is a game that uses all 5 senses, SIGHT, SOUND, 
TASTE, TOUCH and SMELL. This tool can help you relax through anxiety and tension, 
encouraging focus, calming moments and focus on what you are feeling in your body. 

• 5 - LOOK: Look around for 5 things that you can see, and say them out loud. For 
example, you could say, I see the computer, I see the cup, I see the picture frame.

• 4 - FEEL: Pay attention to your body and think of 4 things that you can feel, and 
say them out loud. For example, you could say, I feel my feet warm in my socks, I 
feel the hair on the back of my neck, or I feel the pillow I am sitting on.

• 3 - LISTEN: Listen for 3 sounds. It could be the sound of traffic outside, the sound 
of typing or the sound of your tummy rumbling. Say the three things out loud.

• 2 - SMELL: Say two things you can smell. If you’re allowed to, it’s okay to move to 
another spot and sniff something. If you can’t smell anything at the moment or you 
can’t move, then name your 2 favorite smells.

• 1 - TASTE: Say one thing you can taste. It may be the toothpaste from brushing 
your teeth, or a mint from after lunch. If you can’t taste anything, then say your 
favorite thing to taste.

Grounding with the 5 Senses work sheet

List 5 things you can see:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
List 4 things you can feel:
1.
2.
3.
4.

List 3 things you can hear:
1.

2.

3.

List 2 things you can smell:
1.
2.

List 1 thing you can taste:
1.

National Senior Health & Fitness Day®

https://youtu.be/4lTZ5k0XcLM
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1 Joyful and In Control

2 Happy and Calm

3 Unsure or Anxious

4 Frustrated

5 Angry or Stressed

6 Mad and
Out of Control

Mindfulness Weather Report 
Summon your own weather report that best describes how you are feeling at the 
moment, ie-sunny, rainy, stormy, calm, windy, tsunami?
Directions: Color in your weather report chart with the colors of the rainbow, sun, 
clouds, wind and rain to share your emotions with your family, friends and yourself.

National Senior Health & Fitness Day®



7National Senior Health & Fitness Day®

Join us for Mindfulness and Meditation
To say these are challenging times would surely be an understatement. But 
there are ways we can strengthen our ability to stay steadier even in these days. 
Whether you are a client, or a client’s family member, these times stress us all.
Please join our Zoom call on Wednesday, May 27th at 11:00am to learn how we can 
develop ways of strengthening equanimity using meditation, breathing, and becoming 
more mindful.  Even if you are brand-new to meditation, this will be right for you.
Karen Frank is a nurse at Homewatch CareGivers, and also a pastoral nurse 
and meditation teacher in our community for the past 20 years. With degrees 
in nursing, psychology, and spiritual guidance, she has a practice of integrating 
physical, emotional, and spiritual wellness.

About Homewatch CareGivers - (973) 810-0110
As we have since 1980, Homewatch CareGivers continues to deliver exceptional 
care to elders and their families. Our network of more than 200 caregiver agencies 
fulfills our mission of preserving dignity, protecting independence, and providing 
peace of mind for clients and their families through exceptional home care services.

To Register for the Zoom Call, Mindfulness and Meditation, email Alma Dhuyvetter 
at Adhuyvetter@metroymcas.org, and she will email you the Zoom Call Link.

https://www.homewatchcaregivers.com/
https://www.homewatchcaregivers.com/
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Brain Teasers
Can you solve these visual word puzzles? Let your mind explore and you are sure to 
find the answers, see answers on page 11, click this link for more ▶ Rebus Puzzles. 

National Senior Health & Fitness Day®

http://flashbynight.com/rebus/
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http://teacher.scholastic.com
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Brain Teasers
Can you solve these visual word puzzles? Let your mind explore and you are sure to 
find the answers, see answers on page 11, click this link for more ▶ Rebus Puzzles. 

http://flashbynight.com/rebus/
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Brain Teasers Answers

National Senior Health & Fitness Day®

Page 8 Answers Page 9 Answers

1. a bundle of nerves 1. one thing after another 11. line up in single file

2. small potatoes 2. broken heart or heart      
    broken 12. pacing back and forth

3. pinching pennies 3. but on second thought 13. a backwards glance

4. back on one’s feet 4. last but not least 14. a thin line between love 
      and hate

5. the birds and the bees 5. one in a million 15. all things great and small

6. a finger in the pie 6. fooling around

7. one in a million 7. history repeats itself

8. grey matter 8. musically inclined

9. too funny for words 9. the beginning of the end

10. not worth a red cent 10. scatter brain

▶ Adult CPR Video (click to view)

Ms. Barbara shows you some basic Adult 
CPR skills that could help you in an 
emergency situation. 
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Your Everyday Guide 
from the National Institute on Aging at NIH 

Exercise & Physical Activity 

sample exercises 
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CHAPTER 4: SAMPLE EXERCISES   35 

Many different exercises can improve your health and independence. Whether you do the exercises shown 
in this chapter or other physical activities that accomplish the same goals, gradually work your way up to 
include endurance, strength, balance, and flexibility exercises. 

It’s important to spend about 5 minutes at the 
beginning and end of your routine to warm up 
and cool down. Warming up and cooling down 
give your muscles a chance to get ready to 
work and gradually return to rest at the end. 
These “before-and-after” activities help 
prevent injury and reduce muscle soreness 
later. Here are a few suggestions: 

• Do some light endurance activity frst, such
as walking for 5 minutes. If you’re going to
be walking briskly or running, gradually
build up to that pace. At the end of your
activity, gradually slow down and let your
body cool down.

• Do a few exercises to work the muscles and
joints you’ll be using in your activity. For
example, if you’re going to be swimming, do
a few arm exercises frst to warm up your
arms and shoulders.

• If you’re going to include stretching
exercises as part of your routine,
do them afterwards.

36   EXERCISE & PHYSICAL ACTIVITY
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make it rewarding 
Regular endurance exercise has helped Tom stay healthy after 

major heart surgery: 

“At age 45 I had quadruple bypass surgery. I was shocked because 

I was so young. Those months after my surgery are a blur to me 

now. After several months of cardiac rehab, I knew my heart health 

was in my hands. So, now I run regularly at my neighborhood 

YMCA — around the track in nice weather and on the treadmill 

during the winter. I admit I was nervous at first to push myself. 

I worried I might do more harm than good. But, it’s been 12 years 

and I feel great! This year, I will celebrate my daughter’s graduation 

from college, continue to root for the Aggies, and maybe even 

teach my wife to play golf. I believe exercise has made all of that 

possible for me.” 
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How to Improve Your Endurance 

Endurance exercises are activities — walking, 
jogging, swimming, raking, sweeping, dancing, 
playing tennis — that increase your heart rate 
and breathing for an extended period of time. 
They will make it easier for you to walk farther, 
faster, or uphill. They also should make everyday 
activities such as gardening, shopping, or playing 
a sport easier. 

How Much, How Often 

Refer to your starting goals, and build up your 
endurance gradually. If you haven’t been active 
for a long time, it’s especially important to 
work your way up over time. It may take a while 
to go from a longstanding inactive lifestyle to 
doing some of the activities in this section. For 
example, start out with 5 or 10 minutes at a 
time, and then build up to at least 30 minutes of 
moderate-intensity endurance activity. Doing 
less than 10 minutes at a time won’t give you 
the desired heart and lung benefts. 

Try to build up to at least 30 minutes of 
moderate-intensity endurance activity on 
most or all days of the week. Every day is best. 
Remember, though, that these are goals, not 
rules. Some people will be able to do more. 

Step counters, also called pedometers, 
can help you keep track  of  your 
endurance activity, set goals, and 
measure progress. Most inactive 
people get fewer than 5,000 steps a 
day, and some very inactive people 
get only 2,000 steps a day. 

Wear the step counter for a few days to see how you’re doing. 
You can use the Endurance Daily Record on page 105 to 
record your steps.  If you get: 

• Fewer than 5,000 steps a day, gradually
try to add 3,000 to 4,000 more steps a day.

• About 8,000 steps a day, you’re probably
meeting the recommended activity target.

• 10,000 or more steps a day, you can be
confdent that you’re getting an
adequate amount of endurance activity.

• 10,000 steps a day comfortably, try
for 15,000 steps a day, which would
put you in the high-activity group.

Counting Your Steps 

CHAPTER 4: SAMPLE EXERCISES   37 

Others, however, may not be able to exercise 
for 30 minutes at a time. It’s important to set 
realistic goals based on your own health and 
abilities. 

Safety 

Listen to your body. Is the activity making you 
feel unwell or too tired? Endurance activities 
should not make you breathe so hard that you 
can’t talk. They should not cause dizziness, 
chest pain or pressure, or a feeling like 
heartburn. 

Do a little light activity, such as easy walking, 
before and after your endurance activities to 
warm up and cool down. 

As you get older, you may not feel thirsty even 
though your body needs fuids. Be sure to drink 
liquids when doing any activity that makes you 
sweat. By the time you notice you are thirsty, 
you probably are already low on fuid. This 
guideline is important year round, but it’s 
especially important in hot weather. If your 
doctor has told you to limit your fuids, be sure 
to check before increasing the amount of fuid 
you drink while exercising. For example, people 
with congestive heart failure or kidney disease 
may need to limit fuids. 

Older adults can be afected by heat and cold 
more than others. In extreme cases, too 
much heat can cause heat stroke, and very 
cold temperatures can lead to a dangerous 
drop in body temperature. If you are going to 
be outdoors, dress in layers so you can add or 
remove clothes as needed. When it’s not 
possible to be outdoors, you may want to 
try indoor activities: 

• If you have stairs at home, go up and
down the steps a few times in a row.

• Walk at the mall or grocery store.

• Go for a swim at your local ftness or
recreation center.

Whatever activity you choose, stay safe. 
To prevent injuries, be sure to use safety 
equipment. For example, wear a helmet when 
bicycling. When you’re walking, watch out for 
low-hanging branches and uneven sidewalks. 
Walk during the day or in well-lit areas at 
night, and be aware of your surroundings. 
Ask someone to go with you. Wear the 
proper shoes (see page 22). 

QUICK TIP 

Some people are afraid 
to exercise after a heart 
attack. But regular 
physical activity can help 
reduce your chances of 
having another heart 
attack. 

If you’ve had a heart 
attack, talk with your 
doctor to be sure you’re 
following a safe, effective 
physical activity program. 
Ask about cardiac rehab 
programs, which include 
exercise, education, and 
counseling to help you 
return to an active life. 

GO HERE FOR MORE INFO 
For more about drinking enough 
fluids, see page 97. 

Walking 2 miles a day 
at the mall will help 
you keep up with your 
grandchildren during 
a trip to the park. 

Making 
It REAL

38   EXERCISE & PHYSICAL ACTIVITY
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Progressing 

When you’re ready to do more, build up the 
amount of time you spend doing endurance 
activities frst, then build up the difculty of 
your activities. For example, gradually 
increase your time to 30 minutes over several 
days to weeks (or even months, depending on 
your condition) by walking longer distances. 
Then walk more briskly or up steeper hills. See 
page 13 for more examples of physical activities 
that build endurance. To record your activities, 
use the Endurance Daily Record on page 105. 

Ways to Gauge Your Effort 

The amount of efort you need to do an ac tivity will 
depend on your starting point, including your 
ftness level, how strong you are, and how ac tive 
you’ve been. For example, walking a mile in 
15 minutes will be a lot easier for someone who does 
it every day compared with someone who has never 
done it. You can use these informal guidelines to 
estimate how much efort you are putting into your 
endurance activities: 

• Brisk walking is an example of moderate 
activity, while jogging is a vigorous activity. 

• Talking is easy during moderate activity. 
During vigorous activity, talking is difcult. 

• If you tend to sweat, you probably won’t 
sweat during light activity (except on hot 
days). You will sweat during vigorous or 
sustained moderate activity. Remember 
to drink fuids even if you don’t sweat. 

One doctor who specializes in exercise for older 
adults tells her patients the following about how 
hard they should work during endurance activities: 
“If you can’t talk while you’re exercising, it’s too 
difcult. If you can sing a song, it’s too easy!” 

CHAPTER 4: SAMPLE EXERCISES   39 
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make it affordable 
Exercising at home is just one way to be active. We feature it 

because most older people can do it, but you also might try 

Bonita’s example: 

“I’m 69 and live on my Social Security income. My kids try to spoil 

me, but I’d rather do things on my own as much as possible. When 

looking for a fitness center where I could use strength-building 

equipment, I bargained the owner down to a monthly fee that I 

could afford. I started with 1-pound weights and gradually moved 

on to heavier weights. I also added stretching to my routine. I’ve 

always been active, but never as much as I am now. Joining the 

fitness center has done me a world of good. The owner of my club 

holds me up as an example, and my family is so proud of me.” 
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How to Improve Your Strength 

Even very small changes in muscle strength 
can make a real diference in function, 
especially in people who have already lost a lot 
of muscle. An increase in muscle that you can’t 
even see can make it easier to do everyday 
things like get up from a chair, climb stairs, 
carry groceries, open jars, and even play with 
your grandchildren. Lower-body strength 
exercises also will improve your balance. 

About Strength Exercises 

To do most of the strength exercises in this book, 
you need to lift or push weights. You can use 
weights, resistance bands, or common objects 
from your home. Or, you can use the 
strength-training equipment at a ftness 
center or gym. Start with light weights and 
gradually increase the amount of weight you use. 

How Much, How Often 

Try to do strength exercises for all of your 
major muscle groups on 2 or more days per 
week for 30-minute sessions each, but don’t 
exercise the same muscle group on any 2 days 
in a row. (Use the Weekly Exercise and 
Physical Activity Plan on page 104.) 

• Depending on your condition, you might
need to start out using 1- or 2-pound
weights, or no weight at all. Your body
needs to get used to strength exercises.

• Use a light weight the frst week, then
gradually add more weight. Starting out
with weights that are too heavy can
cause injuries.

42   EXERCISE & PHYSICAL ACTIVITY 

• Gradually add more weight in order to 
beneft from strength exercises. You 
need to challenge your muscles to get the 
most beneft from strength exercises. 
(The Progressing section on page 43 will 
tell you how.) 

• It should feel somewhere between hard 
and very hard for you to lift or push the 
weight. It shouldn’t feel very, very hard. 
If you can’t lift or push a weight 8 times 
in a row, it’s too heavy for you. Reduce 
the amount of weight. 

• Take 3 seconds to lift or push a weight into 
place, hold the position for 1 second , and 
take another 3 seconds to return to your 
starting position. Don’t let the weight drop; 
returning it slowly is very important. 

• Try to do 10 to 15 repetitions for each 
exercise. Think of this as a goal. If you can’t 
do that many at frst, do as many as you 
can. You may be able to build up to this 
goal over time. 

QUICK TIP 

A repetition, or rep, is 
one complete movement 
of an exercise, and a set 
is one group of reps. 
In this guide, a set of 
strength exercises is 
10 to 15 repetitions. You 
can use the Strength 
Daily Record on page 106 
to keep track of the num-
ber of strength exercises 
you do. 

Making 
It REAL

Want to be able to lift 
your carry-on bag into 
the overhead bin of the 
airplane or get in and 
out of the car more 
easily? Keep doing 
those strength exercises, 
and you’ll get there. 

Safety 

• Talk with your doctor if you are unsure about 
doing a particular exercise. For example, if 
you’ve had hip or back surgery, talk about 
which exercises might be best for you. 

• Don’t hold your breath during strength 
exercises. Holding your breath while straining 
can cause changes in blood pressure. This is 
especially true for people with heart disease. 

• Breathe regularly. Breathe in slowly through 
your nose and breathe out slowly through 
your mouth. If this is not comfortable or 
possible, breathe in and out through either 
your nose or mouth. 

• Breathe out as you lift or push, and breathe 
in as you relax. For example, if you’re doing 
leg lifts, breathe out as you lift your leg, and 
breathe in as you lower it. This may not feel 
natural at frst, and you probably will have 
to think about it for a while as you do it. 

• Proper form and safety go hand-in-hand . 
For some exercises, you may want to start 
alternating arms and work your way up to 
using both arms at the same time. If it is 
difcult for you to hold hand weights, try 
using wrist weights. 

• To prevent injury, don’t jerk or thrust weights 
into position. Use smooth, steady movements. 

• Avoid “locking” your arm and leg joints in 
a tightly straightened position. To straighten 
your knees, tighten your thigh muscles. 
This will lift your kneecaps and protect them. 
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• For many of the sample exercises in this
guide, you will need to use a chair. Choose
a sturdy chair that is stable enough to
support your weight when seated or
when holding on during the exercise.

• Muscle soreness lasting a few days and slight 
fatigue are normal after muscle-building
exercises, at least at frst. After doing these
exercises for a few weeks, you will probably
not be sore after your workout. 

Progressing 

Muscle strength is progressive over time. 
Gradually increase the amount of weight 
you use to build strength. When you can do 
2 sets of 10 to 15 repetitions easily, increase 
the amount of weight at your next session. 

Here’s an example of how to progress 
gradually: Start out with a weight that you can 
lift only 8 times. Keep using that weight until 
you become strong enough to lift it easily 10 to 
15 times. When you can do 2 sets of 10 to 15 
repetitions easily, add more weight so that, 
again, you can lift it only 8 times. Keep 
repeating until you reach your goal, and then 
maintain that level as long as you can. 

FOR HOUSEHOLD 
HANDWEIGHTS 
See page 45

QUICK TIP 

Challenge yourself, but 
listen to your body, and 
use common sense when 
you exercise. 

If you feel sick or have 
pain during or after 
exercise, you’re doing 
too much. 

Exhaustion, sore joints, 
and painful muscle 
pulling mean you’re 
overdoing it. None of 
the exercises should 
cause severe pain. 

Over-exercising can 
cause injury, which 
may lead to quitting 
altogether. A steady 
rate of progress is 
the best approach. 

Working with a Resistance Band Resistance bands are stretchy elastic bands that come in 
several strengths, from light to heavy. You can use them in 
some strength exercises instead of weights. 

Wrapping 
a resistance 
band 

1. Lay the band fat in your hand with
the end toward your pinky fnger.

2. Wrap the long end of the
band around the back of
your hand.

3. Grasp frmly.

If you are a beginner, try exercising without the band until you are comfortable, then add the band. Choose a 

light band if you are just starting to exercise, and move on to a stronger band when you can do 2 sets of 10 to 

15 repetitions easily. Hold on to the band tightly (some bands have handles), or wrap it around your hand or 

foot to keep it from slipping and causing possible injury. Do the exercises in a slow, controlled manner, and 

don’t let the band snap back. 

44   EXERCISE & PHYSICAL ACTIVITY
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Working with Weights 

You don’t have to go out and buy weights for 
strength exercises. Find something you can hold 
on to easily. For example, you can make your own 
weights from unbreakable household items: 

• Fill a plastic milk jug with sand or water and 
tape the opening securely closed. 

• Fill a sock with dried beans, and tie up the 
open end. 

• Use common grocery items, such as bags 
of rice, vegetable or soup cans, or bottled 
water. 

Hand Grip 

This simple exercise should help if you have 
trouble picking things up or holding on to 
them. It also will help you open things like 
that pickle jar more easily. You can even do 
this exercise while reading or watching TV. 

1. Hold a tennis ball or other small rubber 
or foam ball in one hand. 

2. Slowly squeeze the ball as hard as you 
can and hold it for 3-5 seconds. 

3. Relax the squeeze slowly. 

4. Repeat 10-15 times. 

5. Repeat 10-15 times with other hand. 

6. Repeat 10-15 times more with each hand. 
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Wrist Curl 
This exercise will strengthen your wrists. It also will help 
ensure good form and prevent injury when you do upper 
body strength exercises. 

1. Rest your forearm on the arm of a 
sturdy chair with your hand over 
the edge. 

2. Hold weight with palm facing upward. 

3. Slowly bend your wrist up and down. 

4. Repeat 10-15 times. 

5. Repeat with other hand 10-15 times. 

6. Repeat 10-15 more times with 
each hand. 
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Overhead Arm Raise 
This exercise will strengthen your shoulders and arms. It 
should make swimming and other activities such as lifting 
and carrying grandchildren easier. 

1. You can do this exercise while standing
or sitting in a sturdy, armless chair.

2. Keep your feet fat on the foor,
shoulder-width apart.

3. Hold weights at your sides at shoulder
height with palms facing forward.
Breathe in slowly.

4. Slowly breathe out as you raise both
arms up over your head keeping your
elbows slightly bent.

5. Hold the position for 1 second.

6. Breathe in as you slowly lower
your arms.

7. Repeat 10-15 times.

8. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times.

As you progress, use a heavier 
weight and alternate arms until 
you can lift the weight comfortably 
with both arms. 
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Front Arm Raise 
This exercise for your shoulders can help you put things up 
on a shelf or take them down more easily. 

1. Stand with your feet shoulder-width
apart.

2. Hold weights straight down at your
sides, with palms facing backward.

3. Keeping them straight, breathe out
as you raise both arms in front of
you to shoulder height.

4. Hold the position for 1 second.

5. Breathe in as you slowly lower arms.

6. Repeat 10-15 times.

7. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times.

As you progress, use a heavier 
weight and alternate arms until 
you can lift the weight comfortably 
with both arms. 
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Side Arm Raise 
This exercise will strengthen your shoulders and make 
lifting groceries easier. 

1. You can do this exercise while standing
or sitting in a sturdy, armless chair.

2. Keep your feet fat on the foor,
shoulder-width apart.

3. Hold hand weights straight down at
your sides with palms facing inward.
Breathe in slowly.

4. Slowly breathe out as you raise both
arms to the side, shoulder height.

5. Hold the position for 1 second.

6. Breathe in as you slowly lower your
arms.

7. Repeat 10-15 times.

8. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times.

As you progress, use a heavier 
weight and alternate arms until 
you can lift the weight comfortably 
with both arms. 

50   EXERCISE & PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

Arm Curl 
After a few weeks of doing this exercise for your upper arm 
muscles, lifting that gallon of milk will be much easier. 

1. Stand with your feet shoulder-width
apart.

2. Hold weights straight down at your
sides, palms facing forward. Breathe
in slowly.

3. Breathe out as you slowly bend your
elbows and lift weights toward chest.
Keep elbows at your sides.

4. Hold the position for 1 second.

5. Breathe in as you slowly lower
your arms.

6. Repeat 10-15 times.

7. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times.

As you progress, use a heavier 
weight and alternate arms until 
you can lift the weight comfortably 
with both arms. 
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Arm Curl 
with Resistance Band 

This variation of the Arm Curl uses a resistance band instead 
of weights. (See Working with a Resistance Band on page 44.) 

1. Sit in a sturdy, armless chair with
your feet fat on the foor, shoulder-
width apart.

2. Place the center of the resistance band
under both feet. Hold each end of the
band with palms facing inward. Keep
elbows at your sides. Breathe in slowly.

3. Keep wrists straight and slowly breathe
out as you bend your elbows and bring
your hands toward your shoulders.

4. Hold the position for 1 second.

5. Breathe in as you slowly lower
your arms.

6. Repeat 10-15 times.

7. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times.

As you progress, use a heavier 
strength band. 
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Seated Row 
with Resistance Band 

This exercise to strengthen upper back, shoulder, and neck muscles 
should make everyday activities such as raking and vacuuming 
easier. (See Working with a Resistance Band on page 44.) 

1. Sit in a sturdy, armless chair with
your feet fat on the foor, shoulder-
width apart.

2. Place the center of the resistance band
under both feet. Hold each end of the
band with palms facing inward.

3. Relax your shoulders and extend
your arms beside your legs. Breathe
in slowly.

4. Breathe out slowly and pull both
elbows back until your hands are
at your hips.

5. Hold position for 1 second.

6. Breathe in as you slowly return your
hands to the starting position.

7. Repeat 10-15 times.

8. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times.

As you progress, use a heavier 
strength band. 
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Wall Push-Up 
These push-ups will strengthen your arms, shoulders, and chest. 
Try this exercise during a TV commercial break. 

1. Face a wall, standing a little farther
than arm’s length away, feet shoulder-
width apart.

2. Lean your body forward and put your
palms fat against the wall at shoulder
height and shoulder-width apart.

3. Slowly breathe in as you bend your
elbows and lower your upper body
toward the wall in a slow, controlled
motion. Keep your feet fat on the foor.

4. Hold the position for 1 second.

5. Breathe out and slowly push yourself
back until your arms are straight.

6. Repeat 10-15 times.

7. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times.
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Elbow Extension
This exercise will strengthen your upper arms. If your 
shoulders aren’t flexible enough to do this exercise, try 
the Chair Dip on page 55. 

1. You can do this exercise while standing
or sitting in a sturdy, armless chair.

2. Keep your feet fat on the foor,
shoulder-width apart.

3. Hold weight in one hand with palm
facing inward. Raise that arm toward
ceiling.

4. Support this arm below elbow with
other hand. Breathe in slowly.

5. Slowly bend raised arm at elbow and
bring weight toward shoulder.

6. Hold position for 1 second.

7. Breathe out and slowly straighten your
arm over your head. Be careful not to
lock your elbow.

8. Repeat 10-15 times.

9. Repeat 10-15 times with other arm.

10. Repeat 10-15 more times with each arm.

If it’s difficult for you to hold hand 
weights, try using wrist weights. 
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Chair Dip 
This pushing motion will strengthen your arm muscles even 
if you are not able to lift yourself up off the chair. 

1. Sit in a sturdy chair with armrests 
with your feet fat on the foor, 
shoulder-width apart. 

2. Lean slightly forward; keep your 
back and shoulders straight. 

3. Grasp arms of chair with your hands 
next to you. Breathe in slowly. 

4. Breathe out and use your arms to 
push your body slowly of the chair. 

5. Hold position for 1 second. 

6. Breathe in as you slowly lower 
yourself back down. 

7. Repeat 10-15 times. 

8. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times. 
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Back Leg Raise 
This exercise strengthens your buttocks and lower back. For an 
added challenge, you can modify the exercise to improve your 
balance. (See Progressing to Improve Balance on page 68.)

1. Stand behind a sturdy chair, holding
on for balance. Breathe in slowly.

2. Breathe out and slowly lift one leg
straight back without bending your
knee or pointing your toes. Try not
to lean forward. The leg you are
standing on should be slightly bent.

3. Hold position for 1 second.

4. Breathe in as you slowly lower
your leg.

5. Repeat 10-15 times.

6. Repeat 10-15 times with other leg.

7. Repeat 10-15 more times with each leg.

As you progress, you may want 
to add ankle weights. 
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Side Leg Raise 
This exercise strengthens hips, thighs, and buttocks. For an added 
challenge, you can modify the exercise to improve your balance. 
(See Progressing to Improve Balance on page 68.) 

1. Stand behind a sturdy chair with
feet slightly apart, holding on for
balance. Breathe in slowly.

2. Breathe out and slowly lift one
leg out to the side. Keep your back
straight and your toes facing
forward. The leg you are standing
on should be slightly bent.

3. Hold position for 1 second.

4. Breathe in as you slowly lower
your leg.

5. Repeat 10-15 times.

6. Repeat 10-15 times with other leg.

7. Repeat 10-15 more times with
each leg.

As you progress, you may want 
to add ankle weights. 
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Knee Curl 

Walking and climbing stairs are easier when you do both the 
Knee Curl and Leg Straightening exercises. For an added 
challenge, you can modify the exercise to improve your balance. 
(See Progressing to Improve Balance on page 68.) 

1. Stand behind a sturdy chair, holding 
on for balance. Lift one leg straight 
back without bending your knee or
pointing your toes. Breathe in slowly. 

2. Breathe out as you slowly bring 
your heel up toward your buttocks 
as far as possible. Bend only from 
your knee, and keep your hips still. 
The leg you are standing on should 
be slightly bent. 

3. Hold position for 1 second. 

4. Breathe in as you slowly lower 
your foot to the foor. 

5. Repeat 10-15 times. 

6. Repeat 10-15 times with other leg. 

7. Repeat 10-15 more times with 
each leg. 

As you progress, you may want 
to add ankle weights. 
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Leg Straightening 
This exercise strengthens your thighs and may reduce 
symptoms of arthritis of the knee. 

1. Sit in a sturdy chair with your back
supported by the chair. Only the balls
of your feet and your toes should rest
on the foor. Put a rolled bath towel at
the edge of the chair under thighs for
support. Breathe in slowly.

2. Breathe out and slowly extend one leg
in front of you as straight as possible,
but don’t lock your knee.

3. Flex foot to point toes toward the
ceiling. Hold position for 1 second.

4. Breathe in as you slowly lower leg back
down.

5. Repeat 10-15 times.

6. Repeat 10-15 times with other leg.

7. Repeat 10-15 more times with each leg.

As you progress, you may want to 
add ankle weights. 

60   EXERCISE & PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

Chair Stand 
This exercise, which strengthens your abdomen and thighs, will make 
it easier to get in and out of the car. If you have knee or back 
problems, talk with your doctor before trying this exercise. 

1. Sit toward the front of a sturdy,
armless chair with knees bent and feet
fat on foor, shoulder-width apart.

2. Lean back with your hands crossed
over your chest. Keep your back
and shoulders straight throughout
exercise. Breathe in slowly.

3. Breathe out and bring your upper body
forward until sitting upright.

4. Extend your arms so they are parallel
to the foor and slowly stand up.

5. Breathe in as you slowly sit down.

6. Repeat 10-15 times.

7. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times.
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People with back problems should start the exercise from the sitting upright position. 

62   EXERCISE & PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

Toe Stand 

This exercise will help make walking easier by strengthening your 
calves and ankles. For an added challenge, you can modify the 
exercise to improve your balance. (See Progressing to Improve 
Balance on page 68.) 

1. Stand behind a sturdy chair, feet
shoulder-width apart, holding on
for balance. Breathe in slowly.

2. Breathe out and slowly stand on
tiptoes, as high as possible.

3. Hold position for 1 second.

4. Breathe in as you slowly lower heels
to the foor.

5. Repeat 10-15 times.

6. Rest; then repeat 10-15 more times.

As you progress, try doing the 
exercise standing on one leg at 
a time for a total of 10-15 times 
on each leg. 
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make it a habit 
Lian, age 68, has found that regular tai chi classes have improved 

her balance and flexibility: 

“Early every morning, I join a group of my neighbors, and we 

practice tai chi for about an hour. We start out with a gentle 

warm-up and breathing exercises. Then our teacher shows us 

how to do certain poses and leads us step by step through the 

slow, flowing movements. We end with cooling down exercises. 

This exercise routine has boosted my confidence and reduced 

my fear of falling. It also keeps my arthritis under control.” 
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Making 
It REAL

You’re walking in the 
neighborhood and you 
hear a bicycle bell behind 
you. Knowing you can turn 
around quickly and move 
out of the way without 
losing your balance is a 
great feeling! 

How to Improve Your Balance 

Each year, more than 2 million older 
Americans go to the emergency room because 
of fall-related injuries. A simple fall can cause 
a serious fracture of the arm, hand, ankle, or 
hip. Balance exercises can help you prevent 
falls and avoid the disability that may result 
from falling. 

How Much, How Often 

You can do the balance exercises in this 
section as often as you like. They overlap with 
the lower-body strength exercises, which also 
can improve your balance. Do the strength 
exercises 2 or more days per week, but not on 
any 2 days in a row. 

Safety 

• Have a sturdy chair or a person nearby
to hold on to if you feel unsteady.

• Talk with your doctor if you are unsure
about doing a particular exercise.

Progressing 

These exercises can improve your balance 
even more if you modify them as you progress. 
Start by holding on to a sturdy chair for 
support. To challenge yourself, try holding 
on to the chair with only one hand; then with 
time, you can try holding on with only one 
fnger, then no hands. If you are steady on 
your feet, try doing the exercise with your 
eyes closed. (See Progressing to Improve 
Balance on page 68.) 

Anytime, Anywhere Balance 
Exercises 

You can do exercises to improve your balance 
almost anytime, anywhere, and as often as 
you like, as long as you have something 
sturdy nearby to hold on to if you become 
unsteady. In the beginning, using a chair or 
the wall for support will help you work on 
your balance safely. 
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All Branches Senior Resources 

Seniors Blue Book

▶ www.seniorbluebook.com - (973) 560-0064

Senior Care Resource

▶ www.familyassets.com/new-jersey - (844) 876-7235

Need Help Paying Bills

▶ https://www.needhelppayingbills.com/html/new_jersey_agency_on_aging.html

Senior Resource Group of NJ
Diane Bromberg-Stern - (201) 478-2228

▶ https://Facebook.com/SeniorResourceGroupNJ/ 

Essex County Department of Citizens Services 

▶ https://essexcountynj.org/senior-services/ - (973) 395-8400 

County of Sussex Department of Health and Human Services 
Division of Senior Services - (973) 579-0555 

▶ https://www.sussex.nj.us/documents/seniorservices/resourcedirectory.pdf

Wayne Senior, Social Services & Welfare 
Director Rosemary Acampora
Township of Wayne, Town Hall, 475 Valley Rd, Wayne, NJ 07470
(973) 694-1800 Ext 3281

Bergen County Division of Senior Services
(877) 222-3737 or (201) 336-7400

▶ https://www.co.bergen.nj.us/division-of-senior-services/about-senior-services

National Senior Health & Fitness Day®

http://www.seniorbluebook.com
http://www.seniorbluebook.com
http://www.familyassets.com/new-jersey
https://www.needhelppayingbills.com/html/new_jersey_agency_on_aging.html
https://Facebook.com/SeniorResourceGroupNJ/
https://essexcountynj.org/senior-services/
https://www.sussex.nj.us/documents/seniorservices/resourcedirectory.pdf
https://www.co.bergen.nj.us/division-of-senior-services/about-senior-services
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Resources 

For more information on health and aging, 
contact: 

National Institute on 
Aging Information Center 

800-222-2225 (toll free) 
800-222-4225 (TTY/toll free) 
www.nia.nih.gov 
https://go4life.nia.nih.gov 

Many groups have information about 
physical activity and exercise for older 
adults. The following list of resources 
will help you get started. 

Administration for Community Living 

202-401-4634 
www.acl.gov 

American Academy of Family 
Physicians 

800-274-2237 (toll free) 
www.familydoctor.org 
Exercise & Seniors 

American Academy of Orthopaedic 
Surgeons 

847-823-7186 
www.aaos.org 
Seniors and Exercise 
Seniors and Exercise: Starting an
     Exercise Program 

American College of Sports Medicine 

317-637-9200 
www.acsm.org

American Council on 
Exercise 

888-825-3636 (toll free)
www.aceftness.org

American Physical Therapy 
Association 

800-999-2782 (toll free)
www.apta.org

American Podiatric Medical 
Association 

301-581-9200
www.apma.org

Centers for Disease Control 
and Prevention 

800-232-4636 (toll free)
www.cdc.gov
Growing Stronger: Strength
     Training for Older Adults 
How to Avoid Portion Size
     Pitfalls to Help Manage
     Your Weight 
Mall Walking: A Program
     Resource Guide 

Centers for Medicare & 
Medicaid Services 

800-MEDICARE 
(800-633-4227; toll free) 
www.medicare.gov 

Department of Agriculture 
Food and Nutrition 
Information Center 
National Agricultural Library 

301-504-5414
www.nal.usda.gov/fnic
www.ChooseMyPlate.gov
Dietary Guidelines for
     Americans 2015-2020 

Department of Transportation 
Federal Highway 
Administration 
Office of Safety 

202-366-8568
http://safety.fwa.dot.gov/
ped_bike
Pedestrian & Bicycle Safety 

Federal Trade Commission 

877-382-4357 (toll free)
www.ftc.gov
Tips for Buying Exercise
     Equipment 

Food and Drug Administration 
Center for Food Safety and 
Applied Nutrition 

888-723-3366 (toll free)
www.fda.gov/AboutFDA/
CentersOfces/OfceofFoods/
CFSAN/

Institute for Credentialing 
Excellence 

202-367-1165
www.credentialingexcellence.org 

International Council 
on Active Aging 

866-335-9777 (toll free)
www.icaa.cc

National Cancer Institute 

800-4-CANCER
(800-422-6237; toll free)
www.cancer.gov
Physical Activity and Cancer
     Fact Sheet 

National Center for 
Complementary and 
Integrative Health 

888-644-6226 (toll free)
www.nccih.nih.gov
Tai Chi and Qi Gong 
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National Council on Aging 

571-527-3900
www.ncoa.org

National Heart, Lung, 
and Blood Institute 
Health Information Center 

301-592-8573
www.nhlbi.nih.gov
Portion Distortion 
Your Guide to Physical Activity
     and Your Heart 

National Institute of 
Arthritis and Musculoskeletal 
and Skin Diseases 

877-226-4267 (toll free)
www.niams.nih.gov
Exercise for Your Bone Health 

National Institute of 
Diabetes and Digestive 
and Kidney Diseases 
National Diabetes 
Information Clearinghouse 

800-860-8747 (toll free)
www.niddk.nih.gov/
health-information/diabetes
Diabetes, Diet, Eating, & Physical 
Activity 
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National Library of Medicine 
MedlinePlus 

www.medlineplus.gov 
Search “Health Topics” for 
exercise and ftness information . 

Office of Dietary 
Supplements
National Institutes of Health 

301-435-2920
www.ods.od.nih.gov 
Dietary Supplement Fact
     Sheets 

Office of Disease Prevention 
and Health Promotion 

240-453-8280
www.health.gov 
Physical Activity Guidelines for
 Americans 
Be Active Your Way: A Guide
 for Adults 

President’s Council on 
Sports, Fitness & Nutrition 

240-276-9567 
www.hhs.gov/ftness 

Weight-control 
Information Network 

800-860-8747 (toll free) 
www.win.niddk.nih.gov 
Staying Active At Any Size 
Young at Heart: Your Checklist
     for Better Health 
Health Tips for Older Adults 
Stay Fit as You Mature 
Walking: A Step in the Right
     Direction 

YMCA 

800-872-9622 (toll free) 
www.ymca.net 

YWCA USA 

202-467-0801 
www.ywca.org 

ASSOCIATION SERVICES 
139 East McClellan Avenue 
Livingston, NJ 07039
(P) 973 758 9622 • MetroYMCAs.org

EAST ORANGE YMCA 
100 North Arlington Avenue
 East Orange, NJ 07017
(P) 973 673 5588 • EastOrangeYMCA.org

FAIRVIEW LAKE YMCA CAMPS
 1035 Fairview Lake Road
 Newton, NJ 07860
(P) 973 383 9282 • FairviewLakeYMCA.org

GREATER BERGEN COUNTY YMCA
360 Main Street
Hackensack, NJ 07601
(P) 201 487 6600 • YMCAGBC.org

SOUTH MOUNTAIN YMCA
 13 Jefferson Avenue 
Maplewood, NJ 07040
(P) 973 762 4145 • SMountainYMCA.org

SUSSEX COUNTY YMCA 
15 Wits End Road
 Hardyston, NJ 07419
(P) 973 209 9622 • SussexCountyYMCA.org

WAYNE YMCA 
1 Pike Drive
Wayne, NJ 07470
(P) 973 595 0100 • WayneYMCA.org

WEST ESSEX YMCA 
321 South Livingston Avenue 
Livingston, NJ 07039
(P) 973 992 7500 • WestEssexYMCA.org

LOCATIONS

9 YEARS IN-A-ROW
TOP 4% OF NON-PROFITS

The YMCA 
is a 501(c)3 
non-profit 

organization.


